
 

 

 

 
To: Members of the Performance 

Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 

 
8 July 2016 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824 712554 

 e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be 
held at 9.30 am on THURSDAY, 14 JULY 2016 in CONFERENCE ROOM 1A, COUNTY 
HALL, RUTHIN. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G. Williams 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF 
THE MEETING 
 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting. 

 

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

 

4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  (Pages 7 - 16) 

 To receive the minutes of the Performance Scrutiny Committee meeting held 
on 9 June 2016 (copy attached). 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

5 RE-LETTING OF COUNCIL HOMES  (Pages 17 - 28) 

 To consider a report by the Lead Officer – Community Housing (copy 
attached) seeking members’ views on the performance outcome for the re-
letting of Council homes and their support for the approach adopted by the 
Council and associated revised performance target. 

9.40 a.m. – 10.10 a.m. 
 

6 DOG FOULING STRATEGY UPDATE  (Pages 29 - 36) 

 To consider a report by the Head of Planning and Public Protection and 
Public Protection Manager (copy attached) on the progress made against the 
Council’s Dog Fouling Strategy and seeking members’ support for the work 
undertaken to tackle dog fouling in the county. 

10.10 a.m. – 10.40 a.m. 
 

 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ BREAK ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

7 CORPORATE RISK REGISTER REVIEW - JUNE 2016  (Pages 37 - 62) 

 To consider a report by the Strategic Planning Team Manager (copy 
attached) seeking members’ views on the latest version of the Corporate Risk 
Register. 

11.00 a.m. – 11.30 a.m. 
 

8 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 63 - 82) 

 To consider a report by the Scrutiny Coordinator (copy enclosed) seeking a 
review of the committee’s forward work programme and updating members 
on relevant issues. 

11.30 a.m. – 11. 45 a.m. 
 

9 FEEDBACK FROM COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES   

 To receive any updates from Committee representatives on various Council 
Boards and Groups. 

11.45 a.m. 
 

PART 2 - CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 

 No Items. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors 
 
Councillor Barry Mellor (Chair) 
 

 

Raymond Bartley 
Meirick Davies 
Colin Hughes 
Geraint Lloyd-Williams 
 

Dewi Owens 
Arwel Roberts 
Gareth Sandilands 
Joe Welch 
 

 
COPIES TO: 
 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 

 

 
Code of Conduct for Members 
 

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 
 
  

I, (name)   

  

a *member/co-opted member of 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Denbighshire County Council  

 
 

 

CONFIRM that I have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial 
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part 
III of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the 
following:- 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Date of Disclosure:   

   

Committee (please specify):   

   

Agenda Item No.   

   

Subject Matter:   

   

Nature of Interest: 

(See the note below)* 

 

 
 

 

   

Signed   

   

Date   

 

 
*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for 
planning permission made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which 
has made an application for financial assistance’. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Performance Scrutiny Committee held in Conference Room 
1a, County Hall, Ruthin on Thursday, 9 June 2016 at 9.30 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillors Raymond Bartley, Meirick Davies, Colin Hughes, Geraint Lloyd-Williams, 
Barry Mellor (Chair), Dewi Owens, Arwel Roberts and Gareth Sandilands 
 
Lead Members, Councillors Bobby Feeley, Hugh Irving and Julian Thompson Hill 
attended at the Committee’s invitation. 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Chief Executive (MM), Corporate Director: Communities (NS), Principal Manager – 
Business Support (TW), Corporate Health & Safety Manager (GL), Strategic Planning 
Team Manager (VR), Scrutiny Co-ordinator (RE) and Committee Administrator (SLW)  
 

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Joe Welch 
 

2 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR  
 
Nominations were sought for a Member to serve as the Committee’s Vice-Chair for 
the 2016/17 municipal year.  Councillor Raymond Bartley nominated Councillor 
Arwel Roberts, seconded by Councillor Gareth Sandilands.  No other nominations 
were received and it was, therefore; 
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Arwel Roberts be appointed as the Performance 
Scrutiny Committee’s Vice-Chair for the 2016/17 municipal year. 
 

3 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
No Declarations of Interest. 
 

4 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
 
No urgent matters. 
 

5 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting of Performance Scrutiny Committee held on 12 April, 
2016 and 28 April, 2016 were submitted. 
 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



12 April, 2016 
 
Councillor Arwel Roberts stated that the point he had raised during the meeting 
regarding the number of Performance Scrutiny Committee Members sitting on the 
Task & Finish Group had not been included within the minutes.   
 
Councillor Gareth Sandilands requested to know when the Head of Community 
Support Services would be attending Performance Scrutiny Committee to provide 
Members with an update of the In-House Care Services. 
 
The Chair confirmed that no date had been set but that it was likely that each 
residence would be presented individually. 
 
28 April, 2016 
 
Page 19 Item 4 Minutes of the last meeting – Primary School Transport.  Councillor 
Arwel Roberts stated that the issue of the Rhuddlan to Ysgol Dewi Sant route was 
still to be resolved.  Members expressed their concern and that the safety of the 
children was paramount. 
 
The Scrutiny Co-ordinator confirmed that the Review of School Transport would be 
presented to Communities Scrutiny Committee on 30 June 2016.  The Chief 
Executive suggested the report could also include the issue of Rhuddlan to Ysgol 
Dewi Sant for further discussion. 
 
Council experts had assessed the route from Rhuddlan to Ysgol Dewi Sant and had 
confirmed it as a safe route.  Members and local residents had disagreed with the 
assessment.  Councillor Roberts advised that the temporary school transport 
arrangements to take children from Rhuddlan to the school, which he had arranged, 
were unsustainable in the long term. 
 
Page 20 Item 4 BT Superfast Cymru Rollout in Denbighshire – it was agreed that 
the item be kept on the Forward Work Programme and that information regarding 
the “not spots” from the Welsh Government was awaited.  The Chief Executive 
suggested a letter be sent to the Welsh Government from the Chair of Performance 
Scrutiny Committee if the “not spots” information had not been received. 
 
RESOLVED that subject to the above, the Minutes of the Performance Scrutiny 
Committee meetings held on 12 April and 28 April, 2016 be received and approved 
as a correct record. 
 

6 CORPORATE PLAN PERFORMANCE REPORT - QUARTER 4 2015/16  
 
The Lead Member for Finance, Corporate Plan and Performance, Councillor Julian 
Thompson Hill introduced the report (previously circulated) which provided an 
update on the delivery of the Corporate Plan 2012-17 as at the end of Quarter 4 
2015-16. 
 

Page 8



At this juncture, the Lead Member introduced the recently appointed Strategic 
Planning Team Manager, Vicki Robarts and welcomed her to her first Scrutiny 
Committee meeting. 
 
The Lead Member emphasised to the Committee that the improvement or decline in 
performance from one quarter to the next was usually minimal due to the long-term 
nature of the Plan.  He summarised the key performance messages for Quarter 4 of 
2015-16 as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report, advising that: 
 

 there were three “outcomes” under the developing the Local Economy 
priority that were classified as “acceptable”, however, an improvement in 
performance in theses outcomes would be required.  Nevertheless, there 
were external factors that mitigated against improvement in these indicators 
at present; 

 whilst the percentage of children aged 16-18 not in education, employment 
or training (NEET) was another area that required further improvement.  It 
had been pleasing to note that the three year trend with respect to the 
number of young people classed as NEETs was downwards; 

 whilst there had been an improvement (reduction) in the numbers of adults 
requiring residential care, there remains a need to improve performance in 
relation to the performance indicator relating to the percentage of the 
population who cannot live independently (aged 18 and over); 

 the present economic situation and lack of confidence in the housing market 
meant that developers were not applying for planning permission for medium 
to large sized housing developments.  This in turn had an impact on the 
performance indicator (PI) relating to the number of affordable housing units 
granted planning permission; and 

 as British Gas, the Council’s energy provider had still been unable to provide 
a breakdown of the Council’s carbon emissions, the Council was unable to 
report against this PI.  Since April, the Council had changed energy provider 
and should, therefore, in the future, be able to report against this PI. 

 
Responding to Members’ questions, the Lead Member and Officers confirmed: 
 

 that whilst there had been a slippage in performance with respect to the 
number of calendar days taken to re-let council housing stock properties, 
there were valid reasons for this linked to ensuring that the properties when 
re-let were of a high standard (a report on performance in this area was 
scheduled for presentation to the Committee at its meeting on 14 July 2016); 

 feedback from the business community in relation to the support available to 
them from the Council had been generally positive.  However, there had 
been a need to further improve performance in relation to this priority and to 
improve communication between the various stakeholders.  There was also 
a need for businesses to be more shrewd e.g. adapt their opening hours to 
match the public’s requirements and expectations; 

 that they would follow up concerns regarding street cleanliness and the delay 
encountered with grass cutting at the county’s lawned cemeteries due to a 
problem with the contractor.  They would also look at how communication 
with local members in relation to delays or problems with public realm 
matters could be strengthened. 

Page 9



 
In relation to the “Modernising the Council to Deliver Efficiencies” priority, Members 
asked Officers to enquire on the number of problems logged from Councillors with 
respect to the interaction of Microsoft Outlook with their council i-pads to establish 
whether there was a significant issue that merited a long-term solution ahead of 
next year’s local authority elections and the new in-take of Councillors. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, the Committee: 
 
RESOLVED subject to the areas listed above being examined and reported back to 
the Committee: 

(i) to receive the report and note the Council’s performance in delivering its 
Corporate Plan during Quarter 4, 2015-16, and 

(ii) that a report on the Council’s performance in delivering its Anti-Fouling 
Strategy, taking enforcement action and introducing Dog Control Orders be 
presented to the Committee at its next meeting  (the report to include 
information on the use and cost of utilising mobile CCTV equipment for 
enforcement activity). 

 
7 CORPORATE HEALTH, SAFETY & WELFARE ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16  

 
The Lead Member for Finance, Corporate Plan and Performance, Councillor Julian 
Thompson Hill, introduced the report (previously circulated) to provide an annual 
update on Health & Safety management within DCC as seen from the perspective 
of the Corporate Health & Safety team. 
 
The Corporate Health & Safety Manager outlined the various formats for the 
presentation of Health & Safety statistics.  These various formats and the detail 
contained within them was extremely useful to Health & Safety Officers when 
undertaking their work.  Responding to Members’ questions, the Lead Member and 
Manager advised that: 
 

 the Corporate Health, Safety and Welfare Committee monitored the accident 
statistics on a quarterly basis and any issues of concern raised at the 
Committee’s meetings would be explored and reported back to them at 
future meetings; 

 Denbighshire’s statistics and incidents were similar to the majority of local 
authorities across the UK, but there was a national tendency to under report 
health & safety statistics; 

 corporately, all incidents were recorded and included in the statistical 
reports.  In schools, minor playground incidents were not reported to the 
corporate centre, only incidents of a more serious nature were reported; 

 there were yearly trends in the number of recorded incidents as well as 
seasonal trends i.e. fewer incidents recorded in schools during the summer 
due to the school summer holidays; 

 all efforts were made to mitigate against an increased risk of health & safety 
incidents in services which had been subject to staffing cuts by ensuring that 
all managers in those services were fully trained in managing health & safety 
related matters.   There had been no increase in the number of incidents 
recorded in services which had been subject to staffing reductions; 

Page 10



 during the course of the 2016/17 year, the Service would be looking at how 
to improve the management of health and safety for lone workers; 

 the council was still awaiting the results of the radon monitoring exercise in 
council owned properties.  The results of the monitoring could potentially 
pose a problem for the council, dependent upon the outcome, because if any 
property recorded a radon level of 10% or above, every property within a 1 
mile radius of that property would require to be monitored at a cost of 
approximately £30 per property. 

 
At the conclusion of the discussion, the Committee thanked the Corporate Health & 
Safety Manager and his team for all their diligent work, and it was: 
 
RESOLVED that subject to the above observations, the Committee receive the 
annual report on the activities and observations of the Corporate Health & Safety 
team. 
 

BREAK – 11.05 A.M. TO 11.15 A.M. 
 
 
At this juncture, there was a change to the order of the Agenda. 
 
 
8 YOUR VOICE REPORT - Q4 2015/16  

 
The Lead Member for Customers and Libraries, Councillor Hugh Irving, introduced 
the report (previously circulated) to provide an overview of compliments, 
suggestions and complaints received by Denbighshire County Council under the 
Council’s customer feedback policy “Your Voice” during Q4 2015/16. 
 
The Principal Manager: Support Services, explained that the corporate target of 
95% had not been met due to the complex nature of some of the complaints, details 
of the complexities associated with some of the complaints were summarised within 
the report.  The target had been previously set at a high threshold with a view to 
ensuring that corporately the council would make every effort to meet it and strive 
for improving its performance and service to the residents.  Responding to 
Members’ questions, the Lead Member and Principal Manager: 
 

 confirmed that from the beginning of the 2016/17 reporting year, complaints 
relating to Council delivered services and services commissioned by the 
Council from an external provider would be recorded separately; 

 confirmed that complaints and compliments for Highways and Environmental 
Services were recorded as a single figure.  It was not separated into 
departmental figures, as the Service was a single Service managed by one 
Head of Service; 

 agreed that the number of compliments received by the council had been 
particularly encouraging; 

 advised that the figures reported within the report related to “complaints”, it 
did not include “service requests” received from Councillors as they were 
“requests” not “complaints”; 

Page 11



 requested that Members, when making service requests on residents’ behalf 
should direct those enquiries via the Customer Relationship Management 
(CRM) system and not contact officers directly, otherwise the statistical 
information on the service request numbers would be incorrect; 

 advised that the council was currently exploring the best method for 
delivering customer services – a discussion was due to take place with the 
council’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT) on proposed service delivery 
methods. 

 
With respect to the forthcoming discussion on customer services delivery, Members 
asked whether the EMMA system could be included within the scope of the review 
as they felt that it was not particularly user-friendly.  Whilst the concept behind it 
was excellent, and Members understood the need to safeguard residents’ personal 
information, they felt it was cumbersome and time consuming to navigate in order to 
follow-up on queries raised. 
 
Following an in-depth discussion, the Committee: 
 
RESOLVED that subject to the above observations and enquiries being made with 
respect to the query relating to the EMMA system, to receive the report and its 
contents. 
 

9 DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES ANNUAL REPORT: 2015/16  
 
The Lead Member for Social Care (Adults and Children’s Services), Councillor 
Bobby Feeley, introduced the report (previously circulated) to enable Members to 
scrutinise the draft report prior to it being submitted to the Care & Social Services 
Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW). 
 
The Lead Member emphasised that the delivery of social care services to the 
county’s residents, and the changes and modernisation of those services, was not 
solely subject to budgetary constraints.  The requirements of the Social Services 
and Well-being Act (Wales) 2014 necessitated a number of changes to the way 
services had historically been delivered. In future there would be greater emphasis 
on supporting people to live as independently as possible for as long as possible, 
with a more proactive, prevention and intervention approach to service delivery 
rather than creating a culture of dependency on residential care type services.   
 
The Corporate Director: Communities, in her role as the Statutory Director of Social 
Services, detailed the contents of her report, emphasising that whilst the report was 
in her name, the work summarised within it was the fruits of the entire social care 
services.  She expressed particular thanks to the recently retired Head of Children 
and Family Services, Leighton Rees, and the Head of Education, Karen Evans for 
their efforts in paving the way for the joining up of the Education and Children’s 
Services and ensuring such a smooth transition to the new single Education and 
Children’s Service. 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



Members were advised by the Director of Social Services that: 
 

 her report for 2015/16 had been presented in a revised format in order to 
conform with legislative changes and accommodate the new framework for 
measuring social care performance; 

 the Director was required to identify the Service’s strengths and weaknesses 
within the report, and also outline plans to strengthen the identified 
weaknesses; 

 the Welsh language was important to the Service and it was widely accepted 
that providing services through the language medium of the service-users 
choice was a central principle of a good social care service; and  

 her focus was on making a difference to people’s lives and keeping people 
independent for as long as possible.   Improving the quality of  lives was the 
ultimate aim, averting the need for statutory services for as long as possible 
subject to ensuring the service-users’ safety. 

 
Members congratulated the Social Services Department’s work with respect of 
striving to provide services through the medium of Welsh for adults.  However, they 
did have concerns with respect to similar services for children, particularly now that 
the funding for Tŵf had been withdrawn.  Responding to these concerns the 
Director advised that in North Wales Tŵf now only operated in the Conwy County 
Borough Council area.  Flying Start had been another early years project 
threatened by funding cuts.  Nevertheless, Denbighshire was confident that its 
approach in bringing together Education and Children’s Services would assist with 
the embedding of linguistic skills throughout early years education, mainstream 
education and youth services. 
 
Responding to other points raised by Members, the Director advised that: 
 

 with respect to the review of in-house adult care services, the details 
requested by Scrutiny and Cabinet in relation to each establishment would 
be presented to Scrutiny at the earliest opportunity, once the required work 
and analysis had been completed.  It was likely that they would not be 
presented to Scrutiny en-bloc, but anticipated that all would be presented 
before the end of the calendar year; 

 a balance required to be struck in the report between communicating 
important messages and including the appropriate level of detail i.e. 
information on the aim of the review of future provision of in-house adult 
social care services and the number of people using council run services in 
comparison to private/independents services.   The latter information was 
freely available for the public in other council published documentation; 

 there had been excellent co-operation on all levels during the work to bring 
the Education Service and the Children and Family Service together as one 
service.  Staff in both services had been extremely positive about the merger 
and on a strategic level both Lead Members and the Leader were involved in 
regular meetings with a view to ensuring a smooth unification; 

 she was aware of recent press articles in relation to an increase in the 
number of suicides amongst the young male population in North Wales and 
concerns raised by a HM Coroner with respect of individual cases.  Directors 
of Social Services across the region also had concerns with respect of these 

Page 13



incidents and were establishing a board to examine access to acute mental 
health services.  Members were advised that the Welsh Government (WG) 
was currently reviewing acute mental health provision across Wales and that 
the Director and colleagues had met with WG officials at Ysbyty Glan Clwyd 
recently to discuss their concerns on mental health provision in the region.  
Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) had recently appointed a 
new Executive Director of Mental Health services.  Initial analysis of the 
incidents of suicide amongst young males indicated that in a number of 
cases the individuals had not experienced long-term mental health problems, 
but that they were more likely to have experienced a “crisis” situation 
immediately prior to taking their own life than an enduring mental health 
problem; 

 delayed transfer of care (DToC) from hospitals to service-users’ home 
tended to occur when extremely complex care packages were required due 
to the service users’ health and/or care needs.  This problem was not unique 
to Denbighshire, in fact, Denbighshire had one of the lowest DToC rates in 
Wales; 

 no specific references were included in the draft report on potential extra 
care provision in the Dee Valley area as extra care housing in this particular 
area of the county was not a feature of the current Corporate Plan.  
Nevertheless, if Members wished, a reference to proposed extra care 
facilities in the Corwen area could be included. 

 
Prior to the conclusion of the discussion, Officers advised that going forward there 
was an urgent need for Social Care Services and Health Care Services to work 
closely together to find a solution on how to effectively integrate Health and Social 
Care Services.   Not solely for financial purposes, but to better meet future demand, 
which due to demographic changes, was an ever growing demand on both 
services. 
 
Members thanked the Director for her detailed report and: 
 
RESOLVED to endorse the Director of Social Services Annual Report 2015/16 for 
submission to the Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW). 
 

10 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  
 
A copy of a report by the Scrutiny Co-ordinator, which requested the Committee to 
review and agree its Forward Work Programme and provided an update on relevant 
issues, had been circulated with the papers for the meeting. 
 
A copy of the “Member’s proposal form” template had been included at Appendix 2, 
Cabinet’s Forward Work Programme had been included as Appendix 3, and a table 
summarising recent Committee resolutions and advising on progress with their 
implementation had been attached at Appendix 4. 
 
The Committee considered its draft Forward Work Programme for future meetings 
as follows: 
 
 

Page 14



14 July 2016 
Dog Fouling to be included.   
Lead Members to be invited to attend the meeting. 
 
29 September 2016 
Affordable Homes to be deferred to the 29 September meeting. 
 
Committee representation on Service Challenge Groups were discussed and it had 
been suggested that Councillor Joe Welch and the new Member, when appointed, 
be invited to represent the Committee on the vacant Service Challenge Groups. 
 
RESOLVED that subject to the above, the Work Programme set out in Appendix 1 
to the report be approved. 
 

11 FEEDBACK FROM COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES  
 
Councillors Geraint Lloyd Williams and Dewi Owens both stated they had attended 
the Corporate Health & Safety Committee meeting but the Committee had not been 
quorate. 
 
Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies confirmed he had attended the Highways and 
Planning & Public Protection service challenge meetings.  Discussion had taken 
place regarding, Parking Charges, School Transport, Trunk Road Agency and 
Waste & Recycling.   
 
Councillor Dewi Owens reported back on a recent Schools Standards Monitoring 
Group (SSMG) meeting which they had both attended at which representatives 
from schools in Llangollen had been in attendance.  It seemed that there were 
concerns regarding a potential lack of Welsh-medium provision for pupils leaving 
Ysgol y Gwernant and transferring to Ysgol Dinas Brân. 
 
RESOLVED that the feedbacks be received and noted. 

 
 
The Meeting concluded at 12.30 p.m. 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to:   Performance Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  14th July 2016 
 
Lead Member / Officer: Lead Member Modernisation & Housing/ 

Head of Facilities Assets & Housing 
 
Report Author:  Lead Officer – Community Housing 
 
Title:    Re-Letting of Council Homes  
 
 
 
1. What is the report about? 

 
This report is to provide an update on the performance outcome for the re-letting of 
Council homes. 

 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
  

To update the Performance Scrutiny Committee on the background to the process 
involved with the re-letting of Council homes and the current thinking around the 
service provided by Community Housing for our customers. 

 
3. What are the Recommendations?  

 
To consider the contents of this report, comment accordingly and support the 
approach adopted by the Council with respect of the re-letting of Council homes and 
the associated revised performance target. 
 

4. Report details 
 
The performance target for re-letting homes has historically been 26 calendar days to 
include all stages from the ending of one tenancy to the start of another at the same 
property. 
 
Whilst this “void” period results in rent loss for the period that the property is not 
tenanted, there are a number of factors to consider between letting a home in the 
shortest possible time frame, whilst ensuring that a property is let to a reasonable 
standard, and the right household is allocated, and able to sustain their tenancy. 
 
This is a joint target in terms of the Community Housing team having to identify a 
suitable new tenant, and the Property teams carrying out the necessary cleaning, 
clearing and repair works required to bring a property up to an appropriate standard 
for the new household to move in. 
 
Re-let performance during 2014/15 was consistently between 25 and 30 days. This is 
currently 43 days as at May 2016.  
 

  

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Significantly Improved Letting Standards 
 
Community Housing has commenced a review into the standards of how we let 
properties, and are developing a common understanding across teams as to what 
standards we expect.  
 
Whilst we have achieved Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) overall for our 
stock, homes are often returned to the Council in poor condition, particularly in terms 
of decoration and cleanliness.  
 
The approach had been taken to carry out essential repairs to ensure health and 
safety requirements are adhered to, in order to ensure that properties can be re-let as 
quickly as possible with the performance target in mind. The decorative condition of 
the property relied mainly on the state that the property was left in by the outgoing 
tenant.  
 
Since the appointment of the Head of Facilities, Assets and Housing and new Lead 
Officer group, the culture has changed to ensure that homes are re-let to the highest 
possible standard.  
 
Pride & Efficiency 
 
A key factor in significantly improving the standards is to encourage an increase in 
the pride that customers have in their homes and garden areas, and in the longer 
term to increase our efficiency and reduce our on-going expenditure on responsive 
maintenance and programmed capital works. 
 
Internal redecoration and garden works have generally not been prioritised in the 
past but this is now key to ensuring that families have a higher quality home to move 
into with significantly better outside space to use and play. The new standard is 
attached in appendix 1. 
 
The Benefits of Higher Re-Let Standards  
 
The increase in the re-letting standards will increase costs, however there are a 
number of benefits that this culture will bring to the community housing service: 
 

 Significantly raise the standards of service for customers  

 Clearly set out the standards we expect for new tenants to the Council 

 Encourage tenants to take pride in their new home 

 Enable new tenants to move in quickly and avoid prolonged disruption with on-
going work, and the expense of bringing the house to an appropriate standard 

 Address long standing poor garden conditions 

 Reduce future ongoing maintenance 

 Reduce new tenants repair request and queries 
 
Adhering to the new standard will require a more appropriate target of 35 days to 
allow for redecoration of the property, and work to provide a safe quality garden 
space. Over time we expect efficiency and performance to improve once we have 

Page 18



established the correct level of resources and developed improved co-ordination of 
our services. 
 
Performance Monitoring 
 
Performance is monitored at Lead Officers Group and we will continue to benchmark 
our performance with other Landlords in Wales and also similar Landlords in 
England. 
 
Customer satisfaction with the re-let process is also closely monitored. 
 
The Service has requested an internal audit of Allocations and Voids processes and 
this work commenced on 27th June 2016.  
 
It is common practice for other social landlords to require a new tenancy to start 
before carrying out the majority of repair works, in order to facilitate the shortest 
possible re-let performance. We are now taking the approach that new tenants are 
best served by having all work completed to the highest possible standard before the 
tenancy commences. 
 
A void property has been completed to the new standards with visits carried out with 
Housing and Property teams to view the standards. The Lead Member for 
Modernisation & Housing has also visited, for information.  
 
Efficient Lettings  
 
The implementation of SARTH (Single Access Route to Housing) later in 2016 will 
deliver a more accurate indication of housing need, and support a more efficient 
lettings process.  
 
Best Use of Housing Stock 
 
Despite significant demand for housing, the very limited numbers of properties that 
become available does mean that it is increasingly difficult to meet the range and 
complexity of needs of our customers.  
 
Work is also underway to implement neighbourhood housing strategies, which will 
give us a detailed understating of housing needs now and in the future, to enable us 
to ensure that our stock will be fit for purpose.  
 
In response to this evidence, in addition to building new homes, we are likely to 
review the suitability of some of our existing stock with the potential to demolish and 
replace if necessary, reclassify if more suitable for another household type, and 
refurbish, to ensure homes are attractive and have modern facilities for households. 
 
Considerable progress has been made in key pressure areas of Rhyl and Denbigh, 
through acquiring suitable land and sites, and to identify potential properties where a 
different use may be more appropriate. 
 

Page 19



In addition work is underway to identify the impact that further welfare reforms will 
have on lettings issues and the sustainability of tenancies. 
 

  

Page 20



5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities?  
 
The Council’s Corporate Plan has a priority for “Ensuring access to good quality 
housing” and this recommendation supports this priority, to enable customers in 
Denbighshire to get the best possible service when looking to access housing. 
 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
The re-letting process has an impact on costs in terms of the rent loss during the 
period a home is unoccupied, and the repair and maintenance costs associated with 
the re-letting standards. These are both closely monitored. 

 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

undertaken on the decision?  
 
An Equality Impact Assessment was not required as there is no specific impact on 
any of the protected characteristics. 

  
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 

  
The revised re-letting standards will be discussed with DTARF the Federation of 
Denbighshire residents groups, however support is likely as the standard is being 
increased significantly. 
 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 
The rent loss and repair and maintenance costs are contained and accounted for 
within the Housing Revenue Account, and are closely monitored. 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

 
The risk is loss of rent due during the period when properties are empty. The report 
identifies the actions that are to be taken to keep this to a minimum. 

 
11. Power to make the Decision  

 
Article 6.3.4(b) outlines Scrutiny’s powers with respect of performance monitoring  
 
Contact Officer: 
Lead Officer – Community Housing 
Tel:  01824 712706 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



   

  

LETTINGS STANDARD 
FOR RE-LETTING 
HOMES  

JUNE 2016 

P
age 21



2  

  Introduction 

The purpose of this document is to outline the standard 

that homes will be re-let to in Denbighshire. This refers 

to existing homes where a tenant has left the property 

and a new household is moving in. 

We want to let homes in the best possible condition so 

that: 

 The incoming household have the best possible start 

in their  new home, 

 Customers understand the standards the council ex-

pects 

 The council operates in accordance with the highest  

possible standards. 

The Standard 

Our homes will be re-let to the highest standards possible. In     

general this means that a home will be ready to move into to. 

We acknowledge that tenants will want to make a home to suit 

their own style however we believe that high standards will 

enable      tenants to enjoy their home without the need for 

costly redecoration or alterations. 

P
age 22



3  

  

 

  External Appearance 

We will ensure that from the street the property will have a clean 

and tidy appearance and look modern and well maintained. 

This means that: 

 There will be a safe pathway access to the front door. 

 Fences and gates will be continuous and in good       

condition. A uniform boundary will be considered having 

regard for the wider street scene. 

 The roof will be in good well maintained condition with no 

missing or cracked slates or tiles. 

 Gutters and fascia’s will be in good condition and free 

from obstruction. 

 Brickwork, cladding or render will be sound and free from 

defects or markings. 

 Damaged or unsightly aerials or satellite dishes including 

cabling will be removed. 
Garden Areas 

 All external areas will be free from unsuitable structures, 

raised beds and other features in order to facilitate safe 

and easily maintainable garden areas including grassed 

areas for safe play. 

 Front gardens will give a positive appearance and be in 

a safe condition so the new tenant can maintain and   

enjoy the garden. 

 Rear gardens will provide a safe and secure environ-

ment for a family. 

 Any overgrown trees or vegetation will be reduced or  

removed to enable ease of maintenance in future  

P
age 23



4  

  

  

Cleanliness 

A home will be fully cleaned to the highest possible stands to  

ensure that it is free from grease, mould, dirt, dust and signs of 

condensation. Particular attention will be made to the kitchen and 

bathroom which will be clean and ready for immediate use. 

 White goods will be removed from the property. 

 All rubbish, carpets and furniture will be removed      

including clearance of the loft spaces and outbuildings 

with floors swept and left ready for recovering.  

 Where carpets have been left in place, are well fitted, 

in prime condition and may benefit the incoming tenant, 

these shall be left in position. Where carpets are       

removed, all gripper rods, threshold strips and any    

excessive surface adhesive will also be removed. 

 Carpets will be fully cleaned prior to re-letting. 

 Particular attention will be given to kitchen work       

surfaces, tiles and splash backs, kitchen cupboards, 

storerooms, bathrooms and toilet areas. 

 All DIY works deemed inappropriate, unsafe or   

surplus to the requirements of the incoming tenant, 

unless otherwise directed, will be removed from the 

property.  

P
age 24



5  

  

 

 

Internal Decoration 

All properties will be decorated to a high standard with all walls 

stripped and coated with emulsion and joinery work will be   

painted with satin paint. 

Existing floor coverings if deemed suitable to be left will be 

cleaned.  

Security 

The property will be fully secured by means of adequate door 

and window locks. 

 New front and rear door locks will be fitted, we will provide 2 

keys per lock and, where appropriate, a minimum of 2     

window keys. 

 Where appropriate suited locks to match the scheme      

system will be provided.  

P
age 25



6  

  

 

 

General work  

 Where fitted, hard wired smoke detectors and careline   

equipment will be checked to ensure it is fully operational 

and functional, with any battery detectors fitted by the      

previous resident removed from site. 

 It is the new tenant’s responsibility to arrange for a gas and 

electricity supply, and arrange if they wish a new meter of 

their choice. 

 We do not supply standard light bulbs or florescent tubes.  

 Gas and Electric installation will be inspected to ensure com-

pliance with the relevant standards. 

Sanitary Goods 

 All installations for the supply of water and sanitation will be 

in good repair and working order. All taps and plugs will be 

operational. WCs will have a secure seat and lid and flush 

correctly.  

 Sinks, WCs, baths, shower trays and wash hand basins will 

all be firmly fixed in position and be free from chips, leaks 

and bad staining.  

 Any required replacements of sanitary goods will match ex-

isting wherever possible; however any replacements will be 

provided in white.  

P
age 26



7  

  

 

 

Kitchens 

 A sufficient number of kitchen wall and floor units will be 

provided to suit the shape and size of the kitchen. 

 The kitchen will have space for a cooker (either gas or   

electric point) and a fridge or a tall fridge / freezer.  

 A cooker hood extraction unit will be fitted (where practical) 

to reduce the ongoing accumulation of dirt and grease.  

Windows, Doors and Joinery 

 All windows and doors will be checked for: ease of           

operation, lubricated, with handles fully tightened as        

required. 

 Double glazed units will be inspected for misting or cracks 

and replaced as required, conforming where appropriate 

with safety glass. 

 All internal doors will be good quality doors and will open 

and close with ease and have functional door furniture fitted. 

 Where PVCu windows have been fitted, restrictors will be 

operational to the first floor windows and the designated 

egress window in the event of an emergency is adequately 

identified and marked. 

 All banisters and fitted handrails will be safe, secure and 

firmly fixed, and that no obvious and visible sign of damage 

is apparent. 

P
age 27



8  

   

  

 

 

Floors 

Any loose or defective flooring will be secured or replaced as 

needed. Missing vinyl tiles will be replaced to match as near as 

possible existing. Vinyl sheet covering will be sound and free from 

signs of damage.  

Where floor coverings have been removed, or are to be removed, 

floor boards and fitted coverings will be inspected to ensure they 

are secure, without signs of distress or possible imminent failure. 

Tenants Improvements 

 Any improvements made by previous tenants will generally 

be removed and the property returned to its original layout 

and design. 

 In exceptional circumstances a flexible approach can be tak-

en to improvements. 

Walls 

Loose and defective plaster will be made good prior to             

redecoration. Missing wall tiles will be replaced were possible to 

match existing.  

P
age 28



Report to:   Performance Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  14 July 2016 
 
Lead Member / Officer: Lead Member Public Realm  
 
Report Author:  Head of Planning and Public Protection  
    Public Protection Manager  
 
Title:    Dog Fouling Strategy Update 
 
 
 
 
1.  What is the report about? 
 
1.1 This is a report providing Members with an update on the progress made against the 

Council’s dog fouling strategy. 
 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
 
2.2 To update members on the progress against the Dog Fouling Strategy. 
 
3.  What are the Recommendations? 
 
3.1 That members consider the contents of the report, comment accordingly and support 

the excellent work undertaken by officers across services to tackle dog fouling in the 
County. 

 
4. Report details 
 
4.1 Dog fouling is a persistent source of complaints and the Council received 477 dog 

fouling related complaints recorded on CRM during the calendar year of 2015. This 

was down from 592 in 2014.  This is a 19% decrease (see Appendix 1). 

4.2 The Streetscene Team within Highways and Environmental Services work closely 

with Public Protection Officers and our Environmental Crime Consultants (Kingdom 

Security Ltd) to ensure dog fouling is addressed. Together we have reviewed and 

updated existing working practices to help tackle the issue of Dog Fouling.  

4.3 Frontline staff now interact far more with dog owners. Staff routinely hand out the 

disposable bags to dog owners and issue advice on where the nearest bin is. This 

interaction with dog owners also allows the team to gather intelligence on persistent 

offenders which helps identify "hot spots" for the Kingdom enforcement officers to 

target. 

4.4 The Streetscene team now sprays yellow chalk spray whenever they clean dog mess 

to help raise public awareness. This has been well received by the public.  

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



4.5 Public Protection Managers, Kingdom enforcement officers and the Streetscene team 

now meet on a regular basis to exchange information on “hot spots” and to pass on 

any intelligence they have gathered about persistent offenders. This information 

includes times, dates and a description of the dogs which helps the Kingdom 

enforcement officers to target problem areas in a more effective way. 

4.6 The number of requests from customers to the Streetscene team to clear dog mess 

is showing a downward trend and the target is for the team to deal with the mess the 

same day the request is received. 

 Dog fouling enforcement action 
  

4.7 The Public Protection team operates in partnership with Kingdom Security Ltd for the 

enforcement of some aspects of environmental crime including dog fouling. This has 

existed since October 2012.  The remit is to provide enforcement of offences relating 

to dog fouling, fly posting, graffiti, littering and smoking in enclosed spaces. 

4.8 The Kingdom team consists of 6 enforcement officers (including a team leader) 

supported by a single administrative officer. This covers the whole county. 

4.9 Officers are deployed six days every week currently between from 7am to 5 pm 

operating a two shift system. The hours of duty is extended as the hours of daylight 

increase. The hours of darkness make it difficult to get good evidence to take 

enforcement action. Dog fouling patrols occur every day as a priority and have done 

so since October 2012. Specific operations have taken place targeting problematic 

areas of environmental crime. A recent example is Operation Daybreak which took 

place between the 16th and 28th of May. This was a high profile operation between 

06.00 and 22.00 every day, therefore including hours of the day where we consider 

most dog fouling takes place. Several dog owners were approached during the 

operation to ask whether they had ‘poo bags’ and to provide education and guidance. 

A total of 10 dog fouling fixed penalty notices were served and 266 for littering.  

Officers will now also be deployed on Sundays for a period of time.  

4.10 We have identified a number of locations in the county that are ‘hot spots’. These are 

particularly problematic dog fouling locations. These are visited by officers on a daily 

basis. A list of the current hot spots can be seen in Appendix 2. 

4.11 Officers also letter drop houses in the area where dog fouling occurs to let the local 

residents know that we are patrolling the area and also let any potential offenders 

know that we will take action if we catch them. Public Protection and Kingdom 

officers also routinely engage with businesses in the locality, schools and town and 

community councils. 

4.12 Kingdom enforce the legislation predominantly through the issue of Fixed Penalty 

Notices (FPN) that if remain unpaid beyond the period allowed will be referred to the 

Magistrates Court for prosecution for the commission of the original offence. 

Page 30



 

4.13 We have effectively targeted the dog fouling hot spots over recent months and have 

served a total of 45 FPNs for dog fouling in 2016 to date. We served more dog 

fouling FPNs during 2014/15 than any other Local Authority in Wales.  We have 24 

prosecution cases pending in court for dog owners who have not paid their FPNs. 

4.14 Powers also exist within the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 to 

introduce Public Space Protection Orders (PSPO) to exclude dogs from certain land 

i.e. enclosed children’s play grounds, school grounds, sports pitches, cemeteries etc. 

and also to require dog owners to put their dogs on leads in certain areas. This 

requires careful consideration and planning to ensure that only proportionate and 

evidence based controls are introduced. The process requires a public consultation 

before introducing such a PSPO and we are currently finalising our proposals to 

consult the public. 

4.15 We have also recently purchased small/compact CCTV cameras which can be 

installed at certain hot spot locations to provide a deterrent to potential offenders or 

indeed record any offences taking place. Reflective (glow in the dark) temporary 

signs are placed in those locations informing any potential offender that we are 

monitoring the area for dog fouling offences and that CCTV is being utilised. These 

CCTV cameras are not part of the public space CCTV system. These cameras retain 

the information that can be downloaded and viewed at a later date.  

4.16 We continue to work closely with the DCC press office to make best use of the media 

in getting messages out on dog fouling. This includes coverage on operations 

undertaken, health risks associated with dog fouling, prosecution cases undertaken 

etc. 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 
5.1 The work undertaken as part of the dog fouling strategy directly contributes to the 

corporate priority of securing clean and tidy streets. 
 
6.  What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
6.1 The costs are retained within service budgets. 
 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

undertaken on the decision? The completed EqIA template should be attached 
as an appendix to the report 

 
7.1 An EQIA is not required for this report. 
 
8.  What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 
8.1 Consultation has taken place with officers from Environmental Services, Kingdom 

Security Ltd and Planning and Public Protection.  

Page 31



 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 
9.1 All costs within existing budgets. 
 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 
10.1 Kingdom do not carry out sufficient dog fouling patrols and FPNs are served without 

sufficient evidence.  Those risks are addressed by robust management of Kingdom 
by Public Protection Managers. The arrangements between the Council and 
Kingdom have recently been subject to an internal audit.  The report was generally 
very positive. The Lead Member for Public Realm and relevant Corporate Director 
are regularly updated on performance in this area of work. 

 
11. Power to make the Decision 
  
11.1 Article 6.3.4(b) details scrutiny’s power with regards to performance monitoring and 

the delivery of policy objectives. 
 
 
Contact Officer: 
Public Protection Manager 
Tel:  01824 706350 

Page 32



Appendix 1 

 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

 

Dog fouling Hot Spots 

 

Corwen 

- Cricket/Football Ground 
 

Llangollen 

- Butlers Hill 
- Riverside Walk/Canal 
- Market Street 

 

Ruthin 

- Cae Ddol 
- Ruthin Football ground 

 
Denbigh 

- Mount Woods 
- Henllan Street 
- Smithfield Road 
- Castle Lane 
- Park Street 
- Denbigh football Fields 

 

St.Asaph 

- Roe Plas Fields/Pont Beggard/All along the River 
- Mount Road/Bryn Gobaith 
- Glan Clwyd School Fields 

 

Bodelwyddan 

- Community Centre Field 
- Rhuddlan Road 

 

Rhuddlan 

- Admiral Fields 
- Gwindy Street 
- Hyas Lane/Twt Hill 

 

 

Page 35



Dyserth 

- Thomas Avenue 
- Upper/lower Foel Road 

 

Melidan 

- Walkway 
 

Prestatyn 

- Mount Woods 
- Barkby Beach 

- Ffrith Beach Arena  
- Victoria Road 
- Bastion gardens 

 

Rhyl  

- Splash Point 
- Green Gym 
- East parade 
- West parade 
- Marine lake 
- Marsh Tracks/The Cob 
- Brickfield Ponds 
- Coronation Gardens 
- Memorial Gardens 

 

Patrols are also undertaken in the below areas due to the number of complaints we 

have in these areas at the moment. 

 

Llandyrnog 

Cynwyd 

Llanfair DC 

Llanrhaeadr 

Henllan 

 

 

Page 36



  

Report to:   Performance Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting:  14 July 2016 

Lead Member/Officer: Head of Business Improvement & Modernisation 

Report Author: Strategic Planning Team Manager 
 
Title:    Corporate Risk Register Review, June 2016 
 
 

 
1. What is the report about?  

 
1.1 The June 2016 formal revision to the Corporate Risk Register. 

2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 

2.1 To present Performance Scrutiny with the latest version of the Corporate Risk 
Register (Appendix 1), as agreed at Cabinet Briefing.  
 

3. What are the recommendations? 
 

3.1 That Performance Scrutiny note the deletions, additions and amendments to 
the Corporate Risk Register, and has the opportunity to comment.  
 

4. Report details 
 

4.1 The main issues to note for the Corporate Risk Register are as follows: 

i. No change to DCC001: ‘The risk of a serious safeguarding error where the 
council has responsibility, resulting in serious injury or death’.  More than half 
the actions planned following a review by the Internal Audit service are 
complete and whilst timescales have slipped for the remaining actions, most 
are near completion. However, given the impact should a serious safeguarding 
error occur, there is no proposal to reduce the residual score at present. 

ii. No change to DCC006: ‘The risk that the economic and financial environment 
worsens beyond current expectations, leading to additional demand on 
services and reduced income’. This risk continues to be closely monitored and 
a robust budget process for 2017/18 has commenced to identify a range of 
proposals to meet cuts incurred. 

iii. No change to DCC011: ‘The risk of an ineffective response to a severe 
weather, contamination, or public health event’. The major incident handbook 
is expected to be finalised by the end of this year.  Once this has been done 
and the changes at ‘response lead level’ are embedded, it is hoped that the 
residual risk likelihood can be downgraded to ‘rare’, but should remain at 
‘possible’ for now. 

iv. DCC012: ‘The risk of a significantly negative report(s) from external 
regulators’. Positive audit reports have been received with the exception of a 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



  

poorer Estyn report, the focus of which was GwE.  Additionally, the CSSIW 
findings regarding Protection of Vulnerable Adults (POVA) arrangements are 
being addressed. The likelihood has therefore been reduced from ‘possible’ to 
‘rare’.  

v. DCC013: ‘The risk of significant liabilities resulting from alternative models of 
service delivery’.  A framework for governance arrangements had been 
implemented but in consideration of the work being undertaken to develop a 
corporate methodology/assessment tool for proposed alternative service 
delivery models, this will now be revisited to ensure alignment.  In addition, the 
elected Member monitoring element is also to be revised in light of learning 
gained from recent applications.  However, in recognition of the increasing 
need to identify and implement alternative service delivery models to sustain 
services, the likelihood has been increased to ‘possible’ with a ‘high’ impact. 

vi. No change to DCC014: ‘The risk of a health & safety incident resulting in 
serious injury or the loss of life’.  

vii. DCC016: ‘The risk that the impact of welfare reforms is more significant than 
anticipated by the council’. The negative impacts initially anticipated have not 
come to fruition. In addition, it is likely to be a combination of factors that will 
contribute to citizens requiring support that may not be directly attributable to 
welfare reform. This risk has been removed from the corporate risk register.  

viii. DCC017:‘The risk that the ICT framework does not meet the organisation's 
needs’. Phase 2 of the ICT strategy is now complete and phase 3 is being 
implemented.  Successful delivery of the strategy will increase our confidence 
still further. This risk has therefore been removed from the corporate risk 
register and will be managed at service level. 

ix. No change to DCC018: ‘The risk that programme and project benefits are not 
fully realised’.  

x. DCC019: ‘The risk that the availability of the Welsh Government’s match-
funding contribution towards Band A of the 21st Century Schools programme 
is not in line with the timescales for Denbighshire’s work programme’.  Funding 
has been confirmed and major projects such as Rhyl High School and Glan 
Clwyd in St. Asaph are complete/in progress.  As a result this risk has been 
removed from the corporate risk register and will be managed as a project risk. 

xi. DCC021: ‘The risk that effective partnerships and interfaces between BCU 
Health Board and Denbighshire County Council (DCC) do not develop, leading 
to significant misalignment between the strategic and operational direction of 
BCUHB and DCC’.  This is still an area of concern as the establishment of the 
Regional Partnership Board is behind schedule and a substantial amount of 
work is required to get to a position where budgets can be pooled for 
residential and nursing home placements by April 2018; both requirements of 
the Social Services Well-being Act. However, an increasing number of control 
measures have been put in place leading to: 

o better communication, interfaces and partnership working between the 
Conwy and Denbighshire Local Authorities and the BCUHB; 

Page 38



  

o greater clarity regarding responsibilities and accountability in BCUHB; 
and 

o greater engagement with BCUHB through scrutiny. 

In recognition of increased number of control measures the likelihood has 
been reduced to ‘highly likely’ but the impact remains ‘high’. 

xii. No change to DCC027: ‘The risk that the decisions that are necessary to 
enable the delivery of a balanced budget are not taken or implemented quickly 
enough’. This continues to be a challenge despite the ongoing progress of the 
budget process, which includes Member involvement, due to uncertainty 
regarding future settlements.  

xiii. DCC028: ‘The risk that the services that we scale back have a greater positive 
or negative impact than we anticipated’.  The impacts are being monitored and 
are not greater than anticipated.  Additionally, no further cuts are required 
during 2016/17. Therefore, the residual risk likelihood has been reduced to 
‘possible’ with a ‘medium’ impact. 

xiv. No change to DCC029: ‘Risk of successful challenge that we are illegally 
depriving people of their liberty’. The Law Commission have recently 
completed a review and we continue to keep a watching brief to be aware of 
proposed changes coming into force.  

xv. No change to DCC030: ‘The risk that appropriate capacity and skills to sustain 
service and corporate performance is not available’.  Control measures are in 
place with middle managers being developed, thereby building better capacity 
amongst the existing cohort of managers. 

xvi. New Risk: DCC031: ‘The risk of fraud and corruption resulting in financial and 
reputational loss and potentially impacting on service delivery’. Given the size 
and nature of the Council’s operations there is an on-going risk of loss due to 
fraud and corruption from both internal and external sources.  In recognition of 
the financial, reputational and possible impacts on service delivery the 
inherent risk is assessed as ‘highly likely’ with a ‘high’ impact. However, robust 
control measures are in place and therefore the residual risk is assessed as 
‘rare’ with a ‘high’ impact. 

xvii. New Risk: DCC032: ‘The risk that the current uncertainty surrounding Local 
Government Reform (LGR) will lead to a greater focus on transition and 
therefore reduce the ambition of our plans’. This risk could impact on our next 
Corporate Plan and Wellbeing Plan in particular.  In being less ambitious they 
may not deliver the changes required to sustain services for the future.  Whilst 
we continue to keep a watching brief on the plans for LGR and in 
consideration of the control measures, the residual risk has been assessed as 
‘probable’ with a ‘high’ impact.  

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 

 
5.1 The purpose of the Corporate Risk Register is to identify the potential future 

events that may have a detrimental impact on the council’s ability to deliver its 

Page 39



  

objectives, including its corporate priorities. The identified controls and actions 
are therefore crucial to the delivery of the corporate priorities.   

  

Page 40



  

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 

6.1 The cost of developing, monitoring and reviewing the Corporate Risk Register 
is absorbed within existing budgets.   

7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 
undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be 
attached as an appendix to the report. 
 

7.1 This Corporate Risk Register documents identified risks, and current and 
proposed mitigating actions. The process of developing and reviewing the 
document itself does not impact adversely on any people with protected 
characteristics. However, any new process, strategy or policy arising as a 
result of a mitigating action should be equality impact assessed at service 
delivery level. 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

8.1 The Corporate Risk Register has been developed by, and is owned by, the 
Corporate Executive Team. The process for review is as follows: 

 All service risk registers are reviewed by services (according to the 
corporate risk management methodology) prior to each Corporate 
review.  

 The Corporate Improvement Team analyse service risk registers to 
identify risks of corporate significance or any themes emerging across 
services.   

 Updates on current corporate risks are collected from risk owners, and 
updates on mitigation actions are collected from action owners. 

 Individual meetings are held with the Chief Executive and each 
Corporate Director, to discuss the risks for which they are lead. 
Consideration is given to whether the risk remains, whether the scores 
are accurate, and whether any new risks under their jurisdiction need to 
be included. 

 A risk workshop is held at Cabinet Briefing to review existing risks; 
discuss progress on agreed mitigation actions; discuss and agree new 
corporate risks; review and update residual risk scores; update existing 
controls (in light of completed actions); and agree any new actions to 
mitigate risks. 

 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 

9.1 There are no financial implications arising from the process outlined in this 
report for developing, monitoring and reviewing the Corporate Risk Register. 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

10.1 The main risk associated with the risk management process is that the 
registers are not regularly reviewed and do not therefore become a dynamic 
and meaningful management tool.  However, the process is fully integrated 

Page 41



  

into the council’s performance management framework, which should mitigate 
against this. 

11. Power to make the Decision 

Local Government Act 2000 

Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution 

 

 

Contact Officer: 

Strategic Planning Team Manager 

Tel:  01824 712346 

Page 42



Page 1 of 20

Page 43



Page 2 of 20

Page 44



Page 3 of 20

Page 45



Page 4 of 20

Page 46



Page 5 of 20

Page 47



Page 6 of 20

Page 48



Page 7 of 20

Page 49



Page 8 of 20

Page 50



Page 9 of 20

Page 51



Page 10 of 20

Page 52



Page 11 of 20

Page 53



Page 12 of 20

Page 54



Page 13 of 20

Page 55



Page 14 of 20

Page 56



Page 15 of 20

Page 57



Page 16 of 20

Page 58



Page 17 of 20

Page 59



Page 18 of 20

Page 60



Page 19 of 20

Page 61



Page 20 of 20

Page 62



Report to:   Performance Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  14 July 2016 
 
Lead Officer:   Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
 
Report Author:  Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
 
Title:    Scrutiny Work Programme 
 
 

 
1. What is the report about? 

  
The report presents Performance Scrutiny Committee with its draft forward work 
programme for members’ consideration. 

 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
  

To seek the Committee to review and agree on its programme of future work, and to 
update members on relevant issues. 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 

  
That the Committee considers the information provided and approves, revises or 
amends its forward work programme as it deems appropriate. 

 
4. Report details 

 
4.1 Article 6 of Denbighshire County Council’s Constitution sets out each Scrutiny 

Committee’s terms of reference, functions and membership, whilst the rules of 
procedure for scrutiny committees are laid out in Part 4 of the Constitution.   

 

4.2 The Constitution stipulates that the Council’s scrutiny committees must prepare and 
keep under review a programme for their future work.  By reviewing and prioritising 
issues, members are able to ensure that the work programme delivers a member-led 
agenda. 

 
4.3 For a number of years it has been an adopted practice in Denbighshire for scrutiny 

committees to limit the number of reports considered at any one meeting to a 
maximum of four plus the Committee’s own work programme report.  The aim of this 
approach is to facilitate detailed and effective debate on each topic. 

 
4.4 In recent years the Welsh Government (WG) and the Wales Audit Office (WAO) have 

highlighted the need to strengthen scrutiny’s role across local government and public 
services in Wales, including utilising scrutiny as a means of engaging with residents 
and service-users.  Going forward scrutiny will be expected to engage better and 
more frequently with the public with a view to securing better decisions which 
ultimately lead to better outcomes for citizens.  In future the WAO will measure 
scrutiny’s effectiveness in fulfilling these expectations. 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



4.5 Having regard to the national vision for scrutiny whilst at the same time focussing on 
local priorities, the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group (SCVCG) has 
recommended that the Council’s scrutiny committees should, when deciding on their 
work programmes, focus on the following key areas: 

 budget savings; 
 achievement of the Corporate Plan objectives (with particular emphasis on the 

their deliverability during a period of financial austerity);  
 any other items agreed by the Scrutiny Committee (or the SCVCG) as high 

priority (based on the PAPER test criteria – see reverse side of the ‘Member 
Proposal Form’ at Appendix 2) and; 

 Urgent, unforeseen or high priority issues 
 
4.6  Scrutiny Proposal Forms 
 As mentioned in paragraph 4.2 above the Council’s Constitution requires scrutiny 

committees to prepare and keep under review a programme for their future work.  To 
assist the process of prioritising reports, if officers are of the view that a subject 
merits time for discussion on the Committee’s business agenda they have to formally 
request the Committee to consider receiving a report on that topic.  This is done via 
the submission of a ‘proposal form’ which clarifies the purpose, importance and 
potential outcomes of suggested subjects.  No officer proposal forms have been 
received for consideration at the current meeting. 

 
4.7 With a view to making better use of scrutiny’s time by focussing committees’ 

resources on detailed examination of subjects, adding value through the decision-
making process and securing better outcomes for residents, the SCVCG has decided 
that members, as well as officers, should complete ‘scrutiny proposal forms’ outlining 
the reasons why they think a particular subject would benefit from scrutiny’s input.  A 
copy of the ‘member’s proposal form’ can be seen at Appendix 2.  The reverse side 
of this form contains a flowchart listing questions which members should consider 
when proposing an item for scrutiny, and which committees should ask when 
determining a topic’s suitability for inclusion on a scrutiny forward work programme.  
If, having followed this process, a topic is not deemed suitable for formal examination 
by a scrutiny committee, alternative channels for sharing the information or 
examining the matter can be considered e.g. the provision of an ‘information report’, 
or if the matter is of a very local nature examination by the relevant Member Area 
Group (MAG).  In future no items will be included on a forward work programme 
without a ‘scrutiny proposal form’ being completed and accepted for inclusion by the 
Committee or the SCVCG.  Assistance with their completion is available from the 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator. 

 
 Cabinet Forward Work Programme 
4.8 When determining their programme of future work it is useful for scrutiny committees 

to have regard to Cabinet’s scheduled programme of work.  For this purpose a copy 
of the Cabinet’s forward work programme is attached at Appendix 3.  

 Progress on Committee Resolutions 

4.9 A table summarising recent Committee resolutions and advising members on 
progress with their implementation is attached at Appendix 4 to this report.   

  

Page 64



5. Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group 

 Under the Council’s scrutiny arrangements the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs 
Group (SCVCG) performs the role of a coordinating committee.  The Group met on 
28 June.  At that meeting it considered a number of request from officers for reports 
to be presented to the Council’s scrutiny committees.  As a result the Group has 
asked this Committee to consider a report on the ‘Performance of Adult Safeguarding 
in Denbighshire’ at its September meeting (see Appendix 1 attached). 

6. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 

 Effective scrutiny will assist the Council to deliver its corporate priorities in line with 
community needs and residents’ wishes.  Continual development and review of a 
coordinated work programme will assist the Council to deliver its corporate priorities, 
improve outcomes for residents whilst also managing austere budget cuts. 

7. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

Services may need to allocate officer time to assist the Committee with the activities 
identified in the forward work programme, and with any actions that may result 
following consideration of those items. 

8. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 
undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be attached 
as an appendix to the report.   

 
No Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken for the purpose of this report as 
consideration of the Committee’s forward work programme is not deemed to have an 
adverse or unfair impact on people who share protected characteristics. 
 

9. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 

None required for this report.  However, the report itself and the consideration of the 
forward work programme represent a consultation process with the Committee with 
respect to its programme of future work. 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

 No risks have been identified with respect to the consideration of the Committee’s 
forward work programme.  However, by regularly reviewing its forward work 
programme the Committee can ensure that areas of risk are considered and 
examined as and when they are identified, and recommendations are made with a 
view to addressing those risks. 

11. Power to make the decision 

Article 6.3.7 of the Council’s Constitution stipulates that the Council’s scrutiny 
committees must prepare and keep under review a programme for their future work. 

Contact Officer:   
Scrutiny Coordinator 
Tel No: (01824) 712554 
e-mail: rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk  

Page 65

mailto:rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 1 

 
Note: Any items entered in italics have not been approved for inclusion at the meeting shown by the Committee. Such reports are listed here for 
information, pending formal approval. 

 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

        

29 September 
 
(GwE 
representatives 
to be invited) 

Cllr. Eryl 
Williams 

1. Provisional External 
Examinations and 
Teacher Assessments  
[Education] 

To review the performance 
of schools and that of 
looked after children 

Scrutiny of 
performance leading to 
recommendations for 
improvement 

Karen 
Evans/Julian 
Molloy 

September 
2015 

 Cllr. Hugh 
Irving 

2 Your Voice’ 
complaints 
performance (Q 1) 
including social 
services annual 
complaints report 

To scrutinise Services’ 
performance in complying 
with the Council’s 
complaints.  The report to 
include: 
(i) a comprehensive 

explanation on why 
targets have not been 
met when dealing with 
specific complaints, 
reasons for non-
compliance, and 
measures taken to rectify 
the failures and to ensure 
that future complaints will 
be dealt with within the 
specified timeframe; and 

(ii) how services encourage 
feedback and use it to 
redesign or change the 
way they deliver services 

Identification of areas 
of poor performance 
with a view to the 
development of 
recommendations to 
address weaknesses.   

Tony Ward/Clare 
O’Gorman/Meinir 
Blunt 

September 
2015 

 Cllr. Barbara 
Smith/David 
Smith/Julian 
Thompson-Hill 

3. Creating a supply of 
affordable homes  

To examine progress in 
delivering theme 2 of the 
Local Housing Strategy  

To support the delivery 
of the corporate 
priority relating to 
‘ensuring access to 
good quality housing’ 

Graham 
Boase/Jamie 
Groves/Angela 
Loftus 

By SCVCG 
December 
2015 
(rescheduled 
May 2016) 

 Cllr. Bobby 4. Performance of Adult To examine the processes Ensuring that adults in Nicola By SCVCG 

P
age 67



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 2 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

Feeley Safeguarding in 
Denbighshire 

in place to deliver adult 
safeguarding work and the 
outcomes achieved 

the county are 
safeguarded in 
accordance with 
statutory guidance and 
that issues relating to 
performance in the 
area of POVA, 
highlighted in the 
CSSIW’s Annual 
Review and Evaluation 
of Performance 
2014/15, have been 
addressed 

Stubbins/Phil 
Gilroy/Alaw 
Pierce 

June 2016 

        

29 September 
2016 (pm) 
 
Special 
Meeting  
(tbc) 
 

Cllr. Bobby 
Feeley 

1. Update on options 
appraisals for In-
house care services. 

To consider the results of 
the analysis undertaken with 
respect to potential options 
for future provision of the 
services 

Formulation of 
recommendations with 
respect to the future 
provision of the 
services for 
submission to Cabinet 

Phil Gilroy/Tony 
Ward 

June 2016 

        

        

8 December Cllr. Julian 
Thompson-Hill 

1. Corporate Plan (Q2) 
2016/17 

To monitor the Council’s 
progress in delivering the  
Corporate Plan 2012-17 
(with particular emphasis on 
the delivery of the Outcome 
Agreements) 

Ensuring that the 
Council meets its 
targets, its Outcome 
Agreements, delivers 
its Corporate Plan and 
the Council’s services 
in line with its 
aspirations and to the 
satisfaction of local 
residents, and 
maximises the 
financial incentives 
available through 
meeting its Outcome 

Alan Smith/Vicki 
Robarts 

April 2016 

P
age 68



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 3 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

Agreements 

 Cllr. Julian 
Thompson-Hill 

2. Procurement Strategy 
and Revised CPRs 

To outline how the Strategy 
is being implemented, its 
impact on the Authority’s 
finances and on the local 
economy, and an 
assessment on whether all 
services are consistently 
applying and adhering to the 
Strategy and CPRs 

Identification of 
whether the Strategy 
and CPRs are 
realising efficiencies 
for the Council, 
supporting the delivery 
of the corporate 
priority of developing 
the local economy and 
any areas for further 
improvement  

Tom Booty By SCVCG 
April 2016 

(tbc) Cllr. Bobby 
Feeley 

3. Update on options 
appraisals for In-
house care services. 

To consider the results of 
the analysis undertaken with 
respect to potential options 
for future provision of the 
services 

Formulation of 
recommendations with 
respect to the future 
provision of the 
services for 
submission to Cabinet 

Phil Gilroy/Tony 
Ward 

June 2016 

        

26 January 
2017 
 

(GwE 
representatives 
to be invited) 

Cllr. Eryl 
Williams 
 
 

1. Verified External 
Examinations and 
Teacher Assessments  
[Education] 

To review the performance 
of schools and that of 
looked after children; and 
GwE’s impact on the 
educational attainment of 
the County’s pupils. 
 
The report to incorporate 
GwE’s Annual report and 
information on the 5 year 
trend in relation to 
educational attainment in 
Denbighshire 

Scrutiny of 
performance leading to 
recommendations for 
improvement 

Julian Molloy September 
2015 

(tbc) Cllr. Bobby 
Feeley 

2. Update on options 
appraisals for In-
house care services. 

To consider the results of 
the analysis undertaken with 
respect to potential options 
for future provision of the 
services 

Formulation of 
recommendations with 
respect to the future 
provision of the 
services for 

Phil Gilroy/Tony 
Ward 

June 2016 

P
age 69



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 4 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

submission to Cabinet 

        

16 March Cllr. Julian 
Thompson-Hill 

1. Corporate Risk 
Register 

To consider the latest 
version of the Council’s 
Corporate Risk Register 

Effective monitoring 
and management of 
identified risk to 
reduce risks to 
residents and the 
Authority 

Alan Smith/Vicki 
Robarts/Nicola 
Kneale 

December 
2015 

        

27 April         

        

8 June Cllr. Julian 
Thompson-Hill 

1 Corporate Plan (Q4) 
2016/17 

To monitor the Council’s 
progress in delivering the  
Corporate Plan 2012-17 
(with particular emphasis on 
the delivery of the Outcome 
Agreements) 

Ensuring that the 
Council meets its 
targets, its Outcome 
Agreements, delivers 
its Corporate Plan and 
the Council’s services 
in line with its 
aspirations and to the 
satisfaction of local 
residents, and 
maximises the 
financial incentives 
available through 
meeting its Outcome 
Agreements 

Alan Smith/Vicki 
Robarts 

April 2016 

 Cllr. Julian 
Thompson-Hill 

2. Corporate Health and 
Safety Annual Report 

To consider the Council’s 
management of general 
health and safety and fire 
safety matters 

Assurances that the 
Authority is abiding 
and conforming with all 
relevant H&S 
legislation and 
therefore mitigate the 
risk of litigation 

Gerry Lapington June 2016 

 Cllr. Bobby 
Feeley 
(required) 

3. Draft Director of 
Social Services 
Annual Report for 
2016/17 

To scrutinise the content of 
the draft annual report to 
ensure it provides a fair and 
clear evaluation of 

Identification of any 
specific performance 
issues which require 
further scrutiny by the 

Tony Ward June 2016 

P
age 70



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 5 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

performance in 2016/17 and 
clearly articulates future 
plans. 

committee in future 

13 July        

        

28 September        

        

7 December        

 
Future Issues 
 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

Impact of Budgetary Cuts on the 
Deliverability of the Corporate Plan 
and the Council’s performance in 
delivering services 
(periodically) 
 
[Task & Finish Group] 
 

To detail the impact of present and 
projected budgetary cuts on the 
deliverability of the Corporate Plan 2012-
17; and the Council’s overall performance 

An evaluation of the Plan’s 
deliverability, the anticipated 
impact of the cuts on the Council’s 
performance versus the actual 
outcome to inform the planning of a 
communication strategy to inform 
residents and stakeholders   

Task and Finish 
Group 

October 2014 

Implementation of the Donaldson 
Report ‘Successful Futures’ – 
Independent Review of Curriculum 
and Assessment Arrangements in 
Wales  
[Education] 
 
Dependent upon the legislative 
timetable  

To consider and monitor the plans to 
implement the agreed measures adopted 
by WG following the consultation on the 
review’s findings  

Better outcomes for learners to 
equip them with jobs market skills 

Karen Evans April 2015 

     

 
Information/Consultation Reports 
 

Date Item (description / title) Purpose of report Author Date 
Entered 

P
age 71



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 6 

Monthly 
Information 
Bulletin 

Your Voice Complaints Procedure  Details of number of complaints received and dealt  
with for each Service via the ‘Your Voice 
procedure to inform the information required in the 
quarterly reports to the Committee 

Tony Ward/Clare 
O’Gorman/Meinir 
Blunt 

June 2014 

Corporate Plan (Q1 
& Q3) 2016/17 
 
September 2016 & 
March 2017 
 
[Information] 

To monitor the Council’s progress in 
delivering the  Corporate Plan 2012-17  

Ensuring that the Council meets its targets, its 
Outcome Agreements, delivers its Corporate Plan 
and the Council’s services in line with its 
aspirations and to the satisfaction of local 
residents, and maximises the financial incentives 
available through meeting its Outcome 
Agreements 

Alan Smith/Vicki 
Robarts 

April 2016 

Information Report  Annual Complaints Report for Social Care To meet statutory requirement to report on the 
complaints annually 

Mark 
Southworth/Ben 
Chandler/Meinir 
Blunt 

By SCVCG 
June 2016 

 
Note for officers – Committee Report Deadlines 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

29 September 15 September 8 December 25 November 26 January 2017 12 January 2017 

 
Performance Scrutiny Work Programme.doc 
 
Updated 04/07/2016 RhE 

P
age 72



 

Appendix 2 

Member Proposal Form for Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 
 

 
NAME OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 

 
TIMESCALE FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

 

 
TOPIC 
 

 

 
What needs to be scrutinised (and why)? 
 

 
 
 

 
Is the matter one of concern to 
residents/local businesses? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Can Scrutiny influence and change 
things?  
(if ‘yes’ please state how you think scrutiny 
can influence or change things) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

 
Does the matter relate to an 
underperforming service or area? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Does the matter affect a large number of 
residents or a large geographical area of 
the County  
(if ‘yes’ please give an indication of the size 
of the affected group or area) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

Is the matter linked to the Council’s 
Corporate priorities 
(if ‘yes’ please state which priority/priorities) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

To your knowledge is anyone else 
looking at this matter? 
(If ‘yes’, please say who is looking at it) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

If the topic is accepted for scrutiny who 
would you want to invite to attend e.g. 
Lead Member, officers, external experts, 
service-users? 

 

 
Name of Councillor/Co-opted Member 
 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 73



 

Consideration of a topic’s suitability for scrutiny 

 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 

 

 

 

 

NO  (no further action or information report) 

 

 

Proposal Form/Request received 

(careful consideration given to reasons for request) 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 Public interest – is the matter of concern to residents? 

 Ability to have an impact – can Scrutiny influence and change 

things? 

 Performance – is it an underperforming area or service? 

 Extent – does it affect a large number of residents or a large 

geographic area? 

 Replication – is anyone else looking at it? 

 

No further action required by 

scrutiny committee.  Refer 

elsewhere or request 

information report?   

 Determine the desired outcome(s) 

 Decide on the scope and extent of the scrutiny work required and the most 

appropriate method to undertake it (i.e. committee report, task and finish group 

inquiry, or link member etc.) 

 If task and finish route chosen, determine the timescale for any inquiry, who will 

be involved, research requirements, expert advice and witnesses required, 

reporting arrangements etc. 

YES 

NO 

Page 74



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Appendix 3 
 
 

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

26 July 1 Tyn y Celyn, Llanbedr Dyffryn 
Clwyd, Rhuthun 

To declare surplus to the 
requirements of the 
Agricultural Estate and 
thereafter to dispose 

Yes Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / Mair 
Jones 

 2 Lodge Farm, Denbigh To declare surplus to the 
requirements of the 
Agricultural Estate and 
thereafter to dispose to the 
sitting Tenant 

Yes Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / Mair 
Jones 

 3 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

 4 Treasury Management Annual 
Report 

To consider the Treasury 
Management Annual Report 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

 5 Strategy for the Prevention and 
Detection of Fraud, Corruption 
and Bribery 

To consider approval of the 
draft strategy. 

Tbc Gary Williams 

 6 Regional Partnership Board To inform partners of the 
requirements within Part 9 of 
the Social Services and Well-
Being (Wales) Act 2014 

Tbc Councillor Bobby 
Feeley / Nicola 
Stubbins / Bethan 
Jones Edwards 

P
age 75



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

which requires the 
establishment of a Regional 
Partnership Board in each 
health board region in Wales, 
and to provide information on 
the steps which are being 
taken to establish this 
Regional Partnership Board 

 7 Ruthin Town Schools 
Development 

To seek authority to award 
the construction contract for 
the new Ysgol Pen Barras 
and Rhos Street School in 
Ruthin. 

Yes Cllr Eryl Williams / 
Nicola Stubbins 

 8 Employment and ICT Policy To consider approval of the 
policy 

Yes Councillor Barbara 
Smith / Andrea Malam 

 9 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

27 Sept 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

 2 Faith Based Secondary Position To seek approval to 
commence the formal stage 
of public consultation on 

Yes Councillor Eryl 
Williams / Karen 
Evans 

P
age 76



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

proposals to close Blessed 
Edward Jones Catholic High 
School and to open a new 
Faith school 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

25 Oct 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

 2 Corporate Plan Performance 
Report 2016/17 Q1 

To consider progress against 
the Corporate Plan 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Alan Smith 

 3 Update on options appraisals 
for In-house Care Services 

To consider and, if 
appropriate, make a decision 
on the potential options for 
future provision of the 
services identified in the 
report 

Tbc Cllr Bobby Feeley / 
Phil Gilroy 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

15 Nov 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

P
age 77



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

 2 Update on options appraisals 
for In-house Care Services 

To consider and, if 
appropriate, make a decision 
on the potential options for 
future provision of the 
services identified in the 
report 

Tbc Cllr Bobby Feeley / 
Phil Gilroy 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

13 Dec 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

 2 Corporate Plan Performance 
Report 2016/17 Q2 

To consider progress against 
the Corporate Plan 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Alan Smith 

 3 Update on options appraisals 
for In-house Care Services 

To consider and, if 
appropriate, make a decision 
on the potential options for 
future provision of the 
services identified in the 
report 

Tbc Cllr Bobby Feeley / 
Phil Gilroy 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

P
age 78



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

July 12 July September 13 September October 11 October 
 
Updated 05/07/16 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 
 

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 
 

Progress with Committee Resolutions 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item number and 
title 

Resolution  Progress 

9 June 
2016 

5 6.  CORPORATE 
PLAN 
PERFORMANCE 
REPORT  - 
QIARTER 4 
2015/16 

RESOLVED subject to the areas listed above 
being examined and reported back to the 
Committee: 

(i) to receive the report and note the Council’s 
performance in delivering its Corporate Plan 
during Quarter 4, 2015-16, and 

(ii) that a report on the Council’s performance in 
delivering its Anti-Fouling Strategy, taking 
enforcement action and introducing Dog 
Control Orders be presented to the 
Committee at its next meeting  (the report to 
include information on the use and cost of 
utilising mobile CCTV equipment for 
enforcement activity). 

 
 
 
 
 
Requested report presented for 
consideration at the current meeting 

 6 7.  CORPORATE 
HEALTH, SAFETY 
& WELFARE 
ANNUAL 
REPORT 2015/16 

RESOLVED that subject to the above 
observations, the Committee receive the annual 
report on the activities and observations of the 
Corporate Health & Safety team. 

Lead Member and officers informed of the 
resolution.  Next year’s annual report 
scheduled into the Committee’s forward 
work programme for June 2017 

 7 8.  YOUR VOICE 
REPORT - Q4 
2015/16 

RESOLVED that subject to the above observations 
and enquiries being made with respect to the 
query relating to the EMMA system, to receive the 
report and its contents. 

Lead Member and officers informed of the 
resolution and asked to examine the query 
relating to EMMA 

P
age 81



 8 9.  DIRECTOR OF 
SOCIAL 
SERVICES 
ANNUAL 
REPORT 2015/16 

RESOLVED to endorse the Director of Social 
Services Annual Report 2015/16 for submission to 
the Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales 
(CSSIW). 

Lead Member and officers advised of the 
resolution 

 

P
age 82


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
	5 RE-LETTING OF COUNCIL HOMES
	COUNCIL HOUSE LETTINGS APPENDIX

	6 DOG FOULING STRATEGY UPDATE
	DOG FOULING STRATEGY UPDATE - APP 1
	DOG FOULING STRATEGY UPDATE - APP 2

	7 CORPORATE RISK REGISTER REVIEW - JUNE 2016
	CORPORATE RISK REGISTER REVIEW - APPENDIX

	8 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME
	Performance Scrutiny Work Programme - App 11
	Work Programme Report - App 2 E
	Work Programme - App 3
	Work Programme - App 4


